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THZ FIPST FIFTEEl YEARS, 1£85-1200

The First Christian Church of El1 Paso, which tcday
occupies the entire 900 block on Arizona Strect, is one of
the city's most beautiful. The building is bounded on the
west by St. Vrain Street, cn the cast by fnge Strzet; and on
the north is a spacious parking area, paralleling Lavada
Street., The structure, which was designed by Carroll and
Daguble and Asscociates of E1 Pase, and built by R. E. licFKee,
Inc.1 at an approximate cost, with furnishings, of 350,000,

is of modified Spanish missgion design and is built in a

S

U-shapa of mellow buff brick which is trimxmad in cast ston
and terra cotta.

The sanctuary is at the scutheast cornsr of the build-
ing; and the fellcwship hall is on the west side, with an
entrance on St. Vrain Street. In between the sanctuary and
the hall is a three-story tower., The sanctuary, with a ssat-
ing capacity of 600, has a high, arched ceiling and beamed
rafters which produce a cathedral effect. Pews and chancel
furniture are of white oak, while the carpet is of a church
wine, and the baptistiry draperiles are of a deep marcon. The

cholr seats are on both sides of the altar, vwhille the organ

1@; Paso Herald-Fost, October 25, 1950,
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is at the left, as cne {aces the chancel. A junior chapel,
jocated in the north corner of the education building, is
alrost & miniature of the rain sanctuary, so far as the fur-
nishings are concerns
The building was formally dedicated in May, 1952,2 and
is now free of debt as the last mortgage paper was burne
during a cercmony in Decomber, 1958. A 235,000 pipe organ
was purchased by the congragation and was installed in Ccto-
ber, 1959. The pastor of ths First Christian Church is Dr.
Jamess Jauncey, while XNr. ¥elth Pierce is associate minister,
and serves as choir director and youth sponsor.
The history of a church is inextricably linked with

the history of & community, of which the church is a part
Comrunities and churches march forward hand in hand and expe-
rience growth together. So it has been with the Fir

Christian Church. A contemporary description of that frontler
outpost in West Texas called El Paso as it appeared in the
early 1880's i{ndicates that thare wers only two hundred
residents, no railrcads, no modern improvements--in fact,
nothing but a few old adobe structures and a mule-drawn street

car.3 But the first church building was completed in 1882,

2rhe 51 Pase Tinas, May L, 1952.
3 n . —
Cuen £ the Degert (81 Paso, Texas: The

T t G )
ticMath Publishers, 1Y23), 16l.
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3
followed by 2 tan-supperted two-roen adobe school establishad
the next year, and the town by 1885 could boast of a popula-

tion of 5,500 and five railroads.“

The {irst Protestant church established in El Paso was
the Spiscopal, which was a result of the efferts of Father
Joseph Wilkens Tays. It was fcunded in 1870, but no church
building was cenpleted befcre 1852, and until 1907 it was
located on liesa Avenue between Texas and 'Mills Strects. From
1885 to 1930, the First Baptist Church was at !lzgoffin and
East San Antonlo Streets, where the present Toltec Building
15 now located. On the corner of Stanton and Texas, now the
sits of the 21 Paso Hational Bank, was erzcted the Trinity
Tcthodist structure, while the Presbyterian edifice was
located on Fyrtle and Kansas from 1882 to 1906, St. Mary's
Chapal, the first Cathelic church in the city, was erccted at
North Oregon and Vyoming Streets in 1882.°

Typical of the southwestern town in the 1800's, El Paso
was infested with saloons, where hard liquor, garbling, and
dance~-hall girls only increased problems of law and order for
the public officials, and there were few enticemants for

saintly felk to choosz the small desert town as a community

K

o lernld-Post, April 28, 1536,
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N
in which to settle and rear thelr familias.6 But into that
setting in 1883 came a tlacksmith by trade, with his wife and
five children; three other children were to be born later in
El Paso. That energetic and preaching snithy was Philip
Miner, who caome to the Couthwest, as did so many others, for
his health.’

Blacksnith Miner was born in Pennsylvania on March 5,
1825, but as a youth became a resident of Indiana where he
mzrried Blizabeth J. Lichtyler, a native of Tennessee. The
couple moved to Dallas, Texas in 1849, where they found a
settlement of three log cabins. The adventurous spirit of
the great pioneering countryman led him, with his family,
for the next thirty ysars to residences in Denton, George~
town, and Austin. He was appointed Justice of the Peace in

Williams County, Texas, August 12, 1865.° In additicen to

6Dr. Howard Thompson, "Makers of El Paso® {unpub-
lish?d zhesis in the £1 Paso Public Litrary, no university,
n.d.), &9.

Tyrs. H. E. Stevenson, “"Scrapbook" (unpublished), in
possession of Krs. H. L. Stevens, 1 13 N. Stevens Street,
1 Paso, Texas. MNrs, H, E. Stevenson was the former Florence
Villas whosa father was Dr. Walter M. Villas, an early
pioneer of &l Paso. Upon her marriage to Dr. He E. Steven-
son, a son of another early pioneer fanily, she bescame a
member of the liyrtle Avenue Church, and until her death in
January of 1959, she was a most faithful Disciple.

811558 Irvin M. Cress, Letter of Noverber 25, 1959
(unpublished), in possession of ¥rs. H. L. Stavens, 1613 K.
Stevens Street, El Paso, Texas. Miss Cross is the grand-
daughter of Philip Finer, the founder.
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serving the community in which he lived in the important
capacity of blacksmith, he also taught the inhabitants about
Christ and a Christian way of l1life. Feing a student himself,
not cnly cof the Bible, but of the subjects of science and
r2dicine too, he felt the tremendous urge for education.
Thefefore, he was most active in the movement to establish
public schools, as well as churches, throughout Texas.9
Consesquently, when Philip HMiner settled in El Paso in
1883, his courss fcllowed the pattern of the past. He toiled
at the forge early and late earning a livelihood for his
farmily, while other hours found him preaching and teaching
ﬁhe gospel to a few Disciples who gathered around him, In
the bepginning there were six or eight who regularly met with
him to worship, and that became the unit around which grew
the splendid congregation of the present First Christian
Church. In 1885 the little group, with thirteen consecrated
Christians, became an organized congregation in spite of the
foct that they had no place in which to maet, Fowever,
undaunted as they were, they arranged to meet first in a
small adobe building at First and Stanton Streets; then for

a period of time they conducted services in thes District

Court room: while later they worshipped in a building on

91bid.

8 . -
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Campbell Street that also furnishaed quarters for the post
offica. Still later, they met for services in a paint shop
on Stanton Streat.10 The thirteen charter members were
Millard Pattersen, James A. Ashford, Zeno B. Clardy, willianm
Coldwaell, H. F. Sanders, Claudz Miner, Emma Hiner, Susie
Brack, }Mrs. Robart F, Campbell, Krs. A. J. Stsvens, lMiss
Lida Hoyer, ¥rs. E. C. Pew, and Rev. Philip Miner.il

¥illard Patterson was a native of Missouri and served
as El Pasc County Attorney when Yslata was the county seat.
Iany timas ha joked about living in Yslsta to hold his job.12
He was cutstanding in his profession, admired for his keen
2udgment and determination. HMorecver, he was a staunch sup-
porter of ths church and was never inconsiderate toward
other denominations. The Apcstle Paul was his 1deal.t3 wr.
Patterson was magnanimous in his religlous and charitable
contributions, whether thay consisted of his money, his time,
or his talents. He was an elder in the church for many
years, acted as Sunday School Superintendent, gerved on

numerous committees during his life, while he spent much of

10Mrs, Stevenscn, "Scrapbock.”

l1p44.

122; Paso lierald-Post, December 17, 1934.

i
P

131rs, 1o A. Shedd, "Memoirs" (unpublished), in pos-
jon of Mrs. H. L. Stevens, 1613 N, Stevans Street, El

S5
so, Texase
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7
his time in conducting prayer meetings that were exception-
ally waell attended. Those services "did much to encourage,
strengthen, and educate the msmbers.®% Mr, Patterson built

Lydia Patterson Institute as a memorial to his first wife,

15

who was a2 devoted Methodist. He drew up the charter for

Brite College of the Bible in 1914, a document which Brother

Brite often callsd ™cater tight® because it was drawn up by

16 Ha was a nmamber of

17

"one of the best lawyers in Texas.!
Erite College Board of Trustees from 1914 to 1921.
In 1921 he retired and moved to California and died
quite suddenly on December 16, 1934. Mr. Patterson owned
many picces of downtcwn property from which numerous organ-
igations wers substantially benefited in his will.18 Austin
Park Christisn Church received trust awards of property, and
First Christian was awarded real estate on Missouri Strest
which was to be s0ld or ussd as a building site for a naw

edifice at the discretion of church officials., Brite College

14zl Paso Herald Post, December 17, 193k,

151hid.

16Colby D. Hall, History of Texas Christian University
(Fort Worth, Taxas: Texas Christian University Press, 1947).
Printed by Stafferd-Lowden Press, 226,

171nid.

185) Paso Herald-Post, Decembar 17, 193L.
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of ths Bible at Fort Worth received a legacy of 360,000,19
while Julia Fowler Home at Dallas, local branches of the
Salvation Army, and the Y.M.C.A. were amply remembared.zo
¥r., Patterson advised that beneficiaries in his estate must
not aid anti-Christ moves; they ware "not to donate to, or
encourage in anyway, the establishment of any pretended

philosophical or religious cult that denies tha personality

of Jesus Christ."21

Jamas A. Ashford was the manager of Bacon's Furniture
Store at LO6 El Pasoc Street and resided at that address.
Zeno B. Clardy was a law partner of the flrm of Blacker and
Clardy and resided at 700 Mesa Avenue., William Coldwell,
attorney at law, later became a city judge and resided at the
corher of South Campbell and Overland Streets. H. F. Sanders
was a stone mason whose home was on Second.Street between
Topnella and Parke Claude Miner, son of Reverend Philip
Miner, was a wheelwright in his father's shop and resided at
the same address, which was 804 Forth Oregon. Emma Miner, a
daughter of Reverend Miner, in 1887 had married R. E. Cross,
who had coms to El1 Paso in 1885 from North Carolina. Their

lgﬂall, History of Texas Christian University, 226.

20@; Paso Herald-Post, December 17, 1934.
2l1pid, |
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9
residence was also €04 lorth Oregon. Mrs, Susie Brack, wife
of ¥illiam B. Brack, who was a partner of the Brack and leil
law firm, resided on the corner of lorth Oregon and éio
Grande Streets, Mrs. A. J. Gtevens' husband was a vwhoeel-
wright and their home was on Franklin Street between Florence
and Ochoa Strests.?? lirs, E. C. Pow was the wife of Zdward
Ce Pew, who was proprietor of a flouriching shoe store on
San Antonio at Oregon and "Pew's Shoas" remained an £l Paso
watchword long after the turn of the century.23

Krs. Robert F. Campbell, although a most enminent
social leader of El Paso for many years, was unflagging and
steadfast in her support of the church, whereas her palacial
house at 701 X¥esa Avenue? was always open for the neads

cf the church.zs For many years the Ladies' Aid Society

225) Paso Directory of 1269 (E1 Paso, Texas: The
£1 Paso Directory Company, 1889),

23815torica; and Descriptive Review (El Paso, Texas:
Trade and Commerce Publishing Company, n.d.), 77.

2lyirs, Campbell's husband sarved as lMayor from 18%4-
1896 and was a prominent Republican leader. The Campbell
home, located on the corner of Mesa Avenue and Wyoming, was
built in 1681, Inasmuch as the railrcads had not been com-
pleted between California and El Paso, and the house being
constructed of redwood, the lumber was haulad by wagons. The
structure consisted of two stories and for many years was
considered the finest and the most beautiful residencs betwesn
San Antonio and Los Angeles, El Paso Daily Merald, February
25, 1839 and January 17, 1919.

25%r3. Shedd, "Memoirs."
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catherad there to seow, to tack conforts, and to carry on

¢t

]

! vitics for monecy-maling purpoczs. Inasmuch as Ges,

[

other act

1 1- ~ - o : %y
Mo was Frs. Campbellts Chinese servant, inew every Romogr

-

of tha church, he would look in on the group of ladies with
a smile, as they labored at their tasks, to inquire, "liow
many today?" Immuzdiately hoe would disappsar to return later
~—ith da nt refreshiments,  Perhicps, Cee, in nis bland way,
would say, "She no home,® to scciety frisnds, but he never
said "no™ tc iny member of the church who called thesre. Iirs.

3

Campbell rusned in her stylish cart with its high- ~stepping
gray horse all over town on errands of mzrey. Shea becams the

first president of the C.%W.B.M. and was considersed to have

{—t

been one of the most capable workers as well as cne of the
most literal coatributors during the early years of the
church.?®  She died in July, 1915.27

Emma Miner Cross, whose mothey died in £1 Paso in
1888, was a consecrated servant as was her father, and che
was considered one of the best Bible students the church had
¥nown. While she aluays prepared the unferzented wine, she
also took the responsibility for the communion 'service and

iinen. It was she who compiled the short church history which

261414,
2751 Paso Daily Horald, July 15, 1015,
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11
vas placed in the cernerstcne of the Oregon Street Church on
March 14, lQOh,Z8 later te be romoved to the cernarstone of
the present bullding on March 11, 1951,29 tlso at lrs.
Cross's heme, in 1838, was organized the first Ladies' Aid
Soclety. The women soon earned ene hundred dollars, and with
it they purchased ccunty script, which was held until the
cenzstruction of tha Myrtle Avenue Church, 0

From the beginning the small congragation fellowed in
the leadership of Reverend Miner, who refusad at all times to
accept any reccmpense for his preaching, In spite of the
difficulties with which they insvitably met, they held resu-
lar services and experienced =low but sure progress. The
genaral tendencies toward lewlessness belittled any of the
Christian efforts. D2an Hall of T.C.U. azdded é note of humor
as he discussed the Disciplet's movement into the Texas {ron-
tiers during the 1880's, when he related the story of the
fearful old man who prayed, as he sa2t out for the West--
"Goodbye, God, I'm going to Texas," >t And as the local

papers printed headlines of the activities of lawless citizens,

El Paso was an example for the Scuthwest and Texas. It was

Mrs. Stevenson, "Scrapbook,.w

¥First Christian liews, March 9, 1951.

3irs, Stevenson, "Ccrapbook.”

31Hall, Toxas Disciples, 31.
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12
at that time that tha Herald editor decided to give front
page importance to the churchas by printing sarmon briefls
from time to time.32

In order to stimulate interest, the Christian congre-
gation hald frequent protracted meetings which were conducted
by scme of the most able rovival leaders in the country. In
18389 Brothers A, J. Push and J. !l. Rosscrans, two of tha most
successful in the brotherheood, held a three-wasks meeting
which gained sezveral new members for the Christian congrega-
ti 33 A. J. Bush was a dignifisd gentleman who wore a
Robert £, Lese style beard and was possessor of a pleasant
voice and a friendly manner that drew pecpls to him. He was
free of that pﬁgnacious and raspy attitude that was fre-
quently a characteristic of the preachars of the day.

His ireniec personality, no doubt, won favor for the
naw missionary Soclety and at the same ti ima enabled
him to hold his own with those vho opposad his
religious principles and church reforms.3
Mrs. H. L. Stevens, as a girl, was very fond of "Uncle

Andrew™ when hse visitad relatives in her home town of Caines-

ville, Texas, where she grew up as a friend of Reverend Bush's

32El Paso Daily Herald, January 7, 1389.

33George wWauchope, “Hemoirs™ (unpublished), in pos-
ion of Mrs. He L, Stevens, 1613 H, Stovens Street, £1 Paso,
5

3LH311 Texas Diaciples, 161.
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13
nieces, e wasg extrerely popular with the young people.35
Most of his life was given to heolding revivals and organizing
churches, especiglly in the churches that were firancially
unable te cbtain evengelists and organizers.36 J. H.
Rosacrans likewise gave many splendid years of service to
evangelism in Texas, later beceming, for ten ysars, a popu-
lar faculty member ¢f Cariton Collsge at Bonham, The two
men, educated and well-trained, were sc successful in the
Z1 Paso mesting that the church was reorfanized with a
mambership of forty~five.37

The fellowing spring in 1890, & minister, PFrancis
Brunner, came to El Paso becauss of hisg health, Soon he was
prevailed upon to preach feor the Christian Church and becane
the first salaried pastor at {ifty dollars per month.38
During his pastorate Mr, Brunner lived at a ranch on the
mesa out bsyond old Fort Bliss toward the mountains, while
the church services were held in the 400 block on Mess

Averus, FNo other accounts are availeble except that hs left

3%%rs, H. L. Stevens, El Paso, Texas, Interview,
February 15, 195%.

361311, Texas Dlscinlas, 201.

Tira. Stevenson, "Scraphook,”
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14
El Pago in 1891.39 Neither is there much history recorded
of ths activities of the congrezation from 1591 to 1893,
axcept for an occasional news item in the local papers which
does verify the church's existence., One exarple in 1892 was
in regard to the Christimas programs cf the different city
congragpations and that of the Christian Church was tncluded, b0
In 1853 the papers carried news that the Protastant church

services wera being disturbed. The Zvening Tribune noted

that church attendants complalined they wers disturbed in
Sunday morning scrvices by the Juarez brass band, vhich
paraded the streets in front of the churches while the minig-
ters were preaching.“l

George Vauchepa, who has been a member for the great-
est nuuber of years, met wlith the Christian brethren for the
first time December 31, 1893 and is still attending services
at First Christian, Having met and known each minlster who
has served the congregation, Kr., Wauchope kncws the history
of the church as none cther does. At the time he came into

the church the members were mesting in the paint shop.Z+2

w

ibid.

e

P

Okl Paso Daily Herald, December 26, 1892,
1

Fony

tvening Tribune, Cctcber 5, 1893,

QZWauchope, "Memoirsg,."
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In the spring of 1895 another protracted neeting was
held by cne of the most premirent cof Christian evangalists,
B. B. Sanders.hB He was & progressive in the church and
later served as one of the first state secretaries of the
Missionary Societies (189?-190h).ha As a youns man, while
ssrving his four years in the Confederate arny, ¥r. Sanders
hed marched through Southuest Teixas into New Mexico, and had
bsen a witnsss to the vast moveiment of the western frontier.
le mot folks in a jubilant and friendly fashlion, and his
ready ssnse of witty humor often turned to serious account
as he preached. While his sermons were fil1led with illustra-
tions from the war cxperiences that fitted into his thought
patterns naturally, his ssntiments never displayed any
southern prejudice, s0 ha was able to use tha pictures as a

L5 Hr, lInll assarts

point of contact with the old soldiers.
that "despite the cheerful and social disposition, in a

sense, he was a man apart. There was an atmosphera of

e a——

th& Paso Daily Herald, January 8, 1895,
bbﬁall, Texas Disciples, 162.

L51p14., 168.
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strength that came out of dezp tragedy."hé

The paint shop wae too small to accommodate the attend-
ance for the revival that was conducted by Reverend Sanders,
co the Methodists parmitted the Disciples to use their sanc-
tuary during the wsek nights and, as the Baptist Church was
the only ons that afforded a baptistry, several nev lonverts
were baptized there at the close of the meeting.h7

The summer of 1895 brought the well-~known J. C. Mason
to the <:hurch,’*8 and, as he tells of the E1 Paso experiences
in his daughter's "Jaccb Caswell XNcCoy Macon,” tha reader
acquires firsthand snforration.*? He declares that he came
for a short vacation from his Houston pastorate to test the

climate for his wife's health, and on arriving he was met at

the railway station by a committee of the brethren, who

béwhen ¥r, Sanders was in the Confederate army his
wife received an erroneous report that he had been killed,
and desiring to surprise her, he did not announce his return,
He slipped into the house. fhe shock was too great and she
never recoverad, 5o she was placed in the State Institution
at Austin. »r. Sanders made his home in the Capitol City in
order to be near her. He was very reticent in relating the
experience and Mr. Hall remarks that, "I only heard him tell
of the tragedy twice.* Hall, Texag Disciples, 168,

/ 47Wauchope, "Memoirg.”

k81p1d.

»

11 McCoy Hzson®
e of the Bible,
xas, 1G53), 131-13%4.

!, -~

%“95artha Mason Fuller, "Jacob Casw
(unpublished Haster's thesis, Brite Colle
Texas Christian University, Fort Vorth, T
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{nvitad him to preach during his stay. They were still moet-
ing in the small pzint shop., Ypon entering the place of
worship, which Mr, HMason later termad a hot box, he inqulired,
":hat hava you bsen doing that you ghould hide out like
this?® They replied, "We are few in number and this is the
best that we can do." Y¥r. Mason answered, "You will zluays
be {2w ia nusber if you continue meeting in a place 1like
this."so Immediztely he advised them to Huy a lot in the
center of town, but the leaders were positive that J. C.
Mason was expecting the impossible of them, Kevertheless,
the great organizer approached }Millard Patterson, who at the
tims was an elder, and parsuaded him to require his sscretary
to draw up a subscription sheet, and at the same tims to hsad
the list with his denation, After some hesitation the lawyer
complied with the minister's request and started ths sub-
scriptions with £1,000. Reverend Mason then took the sheet
the naxt week and proceeded to canvass the businsss places,
and on the following Sunday morning he presanted to an
astounded congregation the list of those who had subscribed
$1,800 toward the purchase of the downtown site. He had
needed §2,000 for the plot at 107 Kyrtle Avenue, and on hear-

ing the reading, an unidentified lawyer in the congregation

2Crypid.

Prnmun By
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